

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 200 TECHNOLOGY WAY SUITE 1151 COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 77845-3424

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

RFP NUMBER RFP-19-01

Event, Academy & Training Registration System

PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 2:00 P.M. CENTRAL STANDARD TIME (CDT) on Friday, July 26th, 2019

MAIL, HAND DELIVER, AND /OR EXPRESS MAIL PROPOSAL TO:

Texas A&M Forest Service Purchasing Department 200 Technology Way Suite 1151 College Station, TX 77845-3424

Show RFP Number, Opening Date, and Time on Return Envelope

NOTE: PROPOSAL must be time stamped at the <u>Texas A&M Forest Service Purchasing Department</u> before the hour and date specified for receipt of proposal.

Sealed proposals will be received until the date and time established for receipt.

REFER ALL INQUIRIES TO:

Alan Degelman, C.P.M., Purchasing Department Head Texas A&M Forest Service Purchasing Department Phone: 979-458-7380

Email: adegelman@tfs.tamu.edu

Table of Contents

SECTION 1	INTF	RODUCTION	
	1.1	Definitions	. 4
	1.2	Scope of Proposal	. 4
	1.3	Contract Term	. 5
SECTION 2	REQ	UIREMENTS FOR STATEMENT OF WORK	
	2.1	Statement of Work	. 5
	2.2	Pricing Structure	11
SECTION 3	PRO	POSAL SELECTION AND EVALUATION CRITERIA	
	3.1	Proposal Selection	. 12
	3.2	Evaluation Information	
	3.3	Evaluation Criteria and Weights	. 13
	3.4	Proposer's Acceptance	. 13
SECTION 4	GEN	ERAL INFORMATION	
	4.1	Submittal Deadline and Location	. 14
	4.2	Notice of Texas A&M Forest Service Holidays—Offices Closed	. 14
	4.3	Submittal Instructions	. 14
	4.4	Special Requirements for Responding Proposers	. 15
	4.5	Proposal Content and Components	. 15
	4.6	Texas A&M Forest Service Contact	. 16
	4.7	Inquires and Interpretations	. 16
	4.8	Open Records	
	4.9	Terms and Conditions	. 17
SECTION 5	GEN	ERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS	
	5.1	General	. 18
	5.2	Alternate Proposal	. 19
	5.3	Time of Performance	. 19
	5.4	Default	. 19
	5.5	Termination	. 19
	5.6	Warranties	. 20
	5.7	Agreement Amendments	. 21
	5.8	Independent Vendor Status	
	5.9	•	
	5.10	Title, Risk of Loss and Freight	. 21
	5.11	Acceptance of Goods and Services	
	5.12	Ownership of Deliverables	
	5.13	Sales and Use Tax	. 22
		Invoicing	
		Payment	
	5.16	Reporting	
	5.17	Observance of TFS Rules and Regulations	
	5.18	Recall Notice	
		Non-Disclosure and Sensitive Data	
		Publicity	
		Severability	
		•	

	5.22	Non-Waiver of Defaults	23
		License and Permits	
		Non-Discrimination	
		Compliance with Law	
		Federal Laws and Regulations	
	5.27	Alcohol- and Drug-Free Workplace	
	5.28	Force Majeure	
	5.29	Governing Law	
		Venue	
SECTION 6	CON	TRACTUAL REQUIREMENTS	
	6.1	Insurance	27
	6.2	HUB	27
	6.3	Texas Public Information Act	27
	6.4	Indemnification	28
	6.5	Other Benefits	28
	6.6	Dispute Resolution	28
	6.7	Contract Administration	29
	6.8	Project Management	29
SECTION 7	KEY	EVENTS SCHEDULE	
	7.1	Schedule	30
SECTION 8	EXE	CUTION OF OFFER	
	8.1	Proposer Affirmation	
	8.2	Signature and Authority to Bind in Contract	34
SECTION 9	RESI	PONDENT'S QUESTIONNAIRE	35
ATTACHMEN	IT A—	-SERVICE CONTRACT	36
ATTACHMEN	T B—	- INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	41
HUB SUBCON	NTRAG	CTING PLAN	

SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 DEFINITIONS

Whenever the following terms are used in any part of this Request For Proposoal (RFP) the intent and meaning shall be interpreted as follows:

- <u>Agreement / Contract</u> shall mean the formal contractual agreement entered into between the Texas A&M Forest Service and the Seller as a result of this RFP
- Business Day shall mean Monday through Friday; excluding holidays
- <u>Calendar Day</u> shall mean each/every day; <u>including</u> weekends, holidays
- ESBD shall mean Electronic State Business Daily, i.e. State's procurement solicitation website
- HUB shall mean Historcially Underutilized Business as certified by the State of Texas
- <u>Proposer / Respondent</u> shall mean the individual, partnership, corporation, or other entity that submits a response to this RFP
- <u>RFP</u> shall mean Request for Proposal
- <u>Seller / Contractor / Vendor</u> shall mean the individual, partnership, corporation, or other entity awarded a contract or agreement for labor or for equipment and supplies under this RFP in accordance with the terms, conditions, and requirements herein
- TFS shall mean Texas A&M Forest Service
- TPASS shall mean Texas Procurement and Support Services for the State of Texas
- <u>TIWA</u> shall mean Texas Interagency Wildfire & Incident Management Academy
- <u>IQS</u> shall mean Incident Qualification System
- TCOLE shall mean Texas Commission on Law Enforcement
- *TCFP* shall mean Texas Commission on Fire Protection
- IQCS shall mean Incident Qualification & Certification System
- <u>SFFMA</u> shall mean State Firefighters' & Fire Marshals' Association of Texas
- *CE Pin* shall mean Continuing Education PIN (ID)

1.2 Scope of Proposal

TFS, a Texas state agency and institution of higher education of the Texas A&M University System, is seeking proposals for a new training registration system for managing the various wildfire academies, training events, and courses the agency facilitates. Part of the mission of TFS is to train first responders and equip them with the knowledge and tools for success. For the better part of the past decade, TFS has used an internally developed custom software application to facilitate student registration, course catalogues, instructors, event details, etc. That custom application is nearing end of life and as such, TFS seeks to replace that system with a new off-the-shelf product or custom developed web application that meets or exceeds its requirements.

Successful contractor shall be responsible for proposing and implementing an Event, Academy & Training Student Registration System for use by TFS. The system shall support multiple training support staff across the agency in different divisions and departments state-wide. Customers of the application shall be students,

first-responders, decision makers, administrators and members of the public. Information shall be accessible from mobile and web platforms through a multiuser, centralized database. The primary purpose of the system is to have a single platform for managing events, trainings, academies and courses offered by TFS and its affiliates. This system, in turn, will become the primary entry point for interfacing with our students and customers who desire first-responder training by TFS.

1.3 Contract Term

The original contract period for an agreement resulting from this RFP will be for a one-year period from date of award. The original agreement may be extended for up to four (4) additional one-year periods. Any renewal(s) will be separate and consecutive. Any renewal(s) shall be under the same pricing, terms, and conditions as that of the original agreement, including any amendments allowed by the original agreement. Any renewal(s) are contingent upon written approval by the TFS and the Seller provided that such renewal is executed prior to the expiration date of the original contract period or any preceding renewal period as applicable.

SECTION 2 REQUIREMENTS FOR STATEMENT OF WORK

2.1 STATEMENT OF WORK

- 2.1.1 It is the Texas A&M Forest Service's intent that the successful contractor shall be responsible for recommending and implementing an event, academy & training student registration system. This statement of work involves a series requirements that TFS requires of a training registration system whether provided by way of a Commercial-Off-The-Shelf (COTS) software of Software as a Service (SaaS).
- 2.1.2 Requirements: Vendor's proposed solution shall meet the following requirements.
 - A. **Vendor Qualifications:** Vendor must demonstrate experience in the following key areas:
 - 1. Must be able to provide examples of where the proposed system has been successfully implemented.
 - 2. General knowledge of event, training and registration systems for small to medium sized organizations.

B. System Architecture Requirements:

- 1. State of Texas Mandated Requirements The system will conform to web accessibility standards (Texas Administrative Code, TAC 206, Subchapter C, Rule 206.70)
- 2. Vendor shall supply detailed information on how their proposed products, services, and solutions address the requirements of Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

(revised). For each electronic and information resource (EIR) product or service subject to Texas Administrative Codes 1 TAC 206 and 1 TAC 213, the Vendor shall provide documentation of how each requirement or specification is met. The Vendor shall provide this information in a Voluntary Product Accessibility Template (VPAT) to document conformance to the applicable Section 508 and WCAG 2.0 Standards. The VPAT template can be obtained at ITI's website:

https://www.itic.org/dotAsset/d432b9da-3696-47fe-a521-7d0458d48202.doc.

- 3. System shall operate on web and mobile platforms. Mobile platform operation may be either a related mobile application or a responsive website accessed from a mobile web browser.
- 4. Users shall access the system using common web browsers including, but not limited to the latest versions of Microsoft Internet Explorer, Microsoft Edge, Mozilla Firefox, Apple Safari, and Google Chrome.
- 5. Vendor may present options for on premise or SaaS hosting.
- 6. An on premise solution must operate on TFS approved IT platforms using Microsoft Windows Server, Microsoft SQL Server, and Internet Information Server (IIS).
- 7. For SaaS solutions, vendor shall provide documentation concerning data security, privacy, integrity, business continuity planning, disaster recovery planning and physical security of servers and services that meets or exceeds applicable Federal, State, TAMU System and Agency policy, procedures, rules and regulations.
- 8. System should be easy to use and have an intuitive design.
- 9. System shall have audit and change tracking capabilities.
- 10. System shall have robust search capabilities and offer different ways to find key data within the system. (e.g. find a user by ID, name, e-mail address, etc.)

C. Security Requirements:

- 1. All transmitted information (e.g. from the client to the server) must be encrypted using SSL encryption (latest and / or non-vulnerable version).
- 2. At a minimum, all sensitive information must be encrypted at rest. User passwords, personally identifiable information, for example. Passwords must be stored using non-reversible encryption.
- 3. Single-Sign-On (SSO): System should accept the use of a SAML 2.0 compliant identity provider to facilitate user login for TFS employees. Microsoft's Active Directory Federation Services (ADFS) is preferred.
- 4. Vendor shall propose identity options for Non-TFS employees or members of the public to login to the system. May include local forms authentication or another identity provider.
- 5. System should have global password policy settings customizable by administrators. Password policy settings should include length, complexity, history, lockout duration and minimum and maximum age.
- 6. System shall have a "Forgot Password" self-service reset feature for all accounts (except those provided by SSO). Feature should include security features such as a captcha and identity verification mechanisms.
- 7. Account management shall be conducted through a secure, centralized and uniform system.

- 8. System should have various user roles that can be assigned to users based on need and job function.
- 9. TFS shall have the ability to approve and define an authorized administrator(s) to perform account, user role management and system administration.
- 10. Vendor will provide TFS with timely security updates or patches to support security vulnerability mitigation stemming from all application dependencies such as application code, 3rd party libraries, middle-ware, services (such as web server software), database systems, and operating systems.

D. General Requirements:

- 1. System shall be mobile responsive and adapt the screen size, images, text and content where technically feasible to the screen size of the device used to access the system.
- 2. The home page of the system should have the ability to add custom content as needed.
- 3. System shall have the ability to easily present and differentiate between the different types of training offered within the system. Vendor may present options such as calendaring, tabs, categories, etc.
- 4. System shall assign an automated, unique number for each student, instructor, administrator and account created within the database. ID's shall not be generated using any personally identifiable information from the user such as a social security or driver's license number.
- 5. All users of the system will use their e-mail address as their username.
- 6. System shall allow users to establish their own password conforming to the set global password policy.
- 7. All TFS employees shall have immediate access via SSO. Account should be created automatically with minimal required data upon first login. A TFS account should be assigned a basic access role within the system. Only an authorized administrator can elevate a TFS account to a higher access role.

E. Payment Requirements:

- 1. System should accept the following minimum payment options:
 - i. Credit Card
 - ii. Invoice
- 2. System shall integrate with Authorize.net (SIM method). Payment gateway details will be provided by TFS.
- 3. System shall allow for partial payments or the ability to pay for one course at a time. Optionally, system should also allow for payment in full.
- 4. No credit card data should be stored nor should a wallet feature be made available. All credit card payment activity will be handled on Authorize.net (in such a manner that will not put the apps/site in scope for PCI ASV management).

F. Student Requirements:

- 1. Students shall be able to create their own user profiles. Data collected should include the following minimum set of fields:
 - i. Name
 - ii. Agency / Organization / Team
 - iii. Regulatory ID's including TCOLE, TCFP, IQS, IQCS, SFFMA, CE Pin
 - iv. Mailing Address
 - v. Billing Address
 - vi. Contact Phone
 - vii. Secondary Phone
 - viii. Contact E-mail Address
 - ix. Secondary E-mail Address
- 2. Students shall be able to browse courses by calendar, list view, or by type (event, academy, training, etc.)
- 3. Students shall be able to register for one or more courses at once.
- 4. System shall have a course schedule overlap avoidance feature to prohibit students from registering for courses that happen at the same time.
- 5. Students shall have the ability to upload their earned certificates into their student profile (subject to admin approval).
- 6. System shall have the ability to request additional custom information from the student based on a particular course or event they are registering for.
- 7. Students shall be able to add themselves to a wait list for a course or event that is already full. System should notify and automatically add the student if a slot becomes available.
- 8. Students shall be able to print their full transcript including courses or events registered for within the system and those they have uploaded.
- 9. Students shall be able to print their list of registered courses or events complete with dates, times, instructor, location, etc.

G. Instructor Requirements:

- 1. Instructors shall have all of the same features and access as a student, plus the following set of features.
- 2. Instructors shall be able to print off class rosters including a daily sign in sheet.
- 3. Instructors should not be able to assign themselves to teach courses or events. This process will be handled by administrators.
- 4. System shall have an instructor schedule overlap avoidance feature to prohibit instructors for teaching (or taking) courses or events that happen at the same time.

H. Administrator Requirements:

1. Administrators shall have all of the same features and access as students and instructors, plus the following set of features.

- 2. Ability to create a student, instructor or admin profiles on demand as needed. Ex. Based on a paper registration form.
- 3. Ability to upload certificates into a student profile directly.
- 4. Ability to approve uploaded certificates by a student or instructor.
- 5. System shall have wait list capabilities and the ability for administrators to add or remove students from the wait list as needed.
- 6. If a registration is denied or cancelled, the next available student on the wait list will automatically move up to pending.
- 7. System shall have automated e-mails that go out to students, instructors, and admins upon registering for a course, course cancellation, course reminders, course confirmation, wait listed, moved off the wait list (whether by actually getting to attend or they were removed by admin), course materials, certificate uploaded, or approved.
- 8. Ability for administrators to classify accounts as more than one role. Student, instructor and administrator. For example, an instructor can also be a student. Any user can be any role.
- 9. System shall generate completion certificates for courses with the relevant course and student information based on pre-defined templates. Templates should be customizable by administrators.
- 10. System shall generate name badges from a custom template provided by TFS. There should be options to print different types of badges based on attendee type. Ex. Staff, vendor, instructors, students, etc.
- 11. Ability for administrators to designate a student as having passed or failed a particular course.
- 12. Ability to uploaded completed rosters, evaluations, signed certificates, etc. for individual courses or events for record retention.
- 13. Ability to keep registrations as pending until administrators can verify pre-requisites, and then be able to approve, deny, or keep as pending if needed. Upon approval, system shall generate automated e-mails to students or attendees with the relevant course materials or documents.
- 14. System shall allow administrators to approve individual registrations or in bulk. Ex. Approve an entire class at once.
- 15. Administrators shall have the ability to upload flyers, important documents for courses, trainings, conferences and events. To be e-mailed to the students or attendees as they are confirmed.
- 16. System shall create rosters (sign in sheets). The sign in sheet should last for the entire duration of the course or event. Data should be pre-populated with the following minimum set of information:
 - i. System generated Student ID number
 - ii. Name
 - iii. Organization
 - iv. Other relevant ID numbers.
- 17. Administrators shall be able to edit the master list of courses, events, trainings, and conferences offered in the system.
- 18. When making a course available for registration, it should reference the catalogue in name only. Meaning if the course catalog is ever changed, the individual event will

- retain its unique setup for historical purposes. Data should be changeable about the course including the cost, type and duration.
- 19. System shall allow the use of the same course from the catalog multiple times in a given period.
- 20. Ability to assign a zero cost value for course, evens, trainings, etc.
- 21. Ability to create a single class, training event with multiple classes, or conference. Then be able to collect different data based on type of event (hotel name, confirmation number, coordinator contact information no defaulting to registrar. Need course coordinator contact area for each course.
- 22. Ability to "close" a training on the public site but still allow administrators to edit, reconcile payments and resolve issues to close out the course.
- 23. Ability to have future training or events listed on the public site but not yet available for registration.
- 24. Ability to set dates for registration open, registration closed, early-bird registration, last day to cancel.

I. Reports:

- 1. System shall generate various reports, including but not limited to:
 - i. Course registration
 - ii. Training schedules
 - iii. Student reports by name
 - iv. Account reports by organization
 - v. Paid / balance due reports
 - vi. TCOLE report
 - vii. Number of attendees by events, course, etc.

J. Data Migration:

- 1. TFS desires to migrate existing student account data to the newly selected system. Vendor shall propose options to import data and automatically generate account notifications for first-time login in the new system.
- 2. TFS also desires to migrate existing student course registration information to the newly selected system. This is to ensure a student maintains their existing transcripts to date will providing an opportunity to further build that transcript into the future.

K. Integration:

1. System shall integrate with an additional database driven system called the Incident Qualification System (IQS) to future build student transcripts within the new system. Most likely, a flat file integration will be needed here.

2.2. Standardized Pricing Structure

The Proposer's response proposal shall include an itemized pricing structure that separately details all costs for each of the individual deliverables.

All prices quoted shall be all inclusive with regard to any and all costs including, but not limited to, travel expenses, shipping, postage, fees, licensing, bonding, and any other applicable charges required for the completion of the project as specified. If necessary, such costs may be separately detailed in the pricing structure.

Any other services and/or items not specifically referenced within this RFP, but that may be included in the Proposer's response proposal shall be separately priced in the pricing structure.

Pricing Fee Schedule Structure

RFP Section Number	Description	Price	UOM
	FEE SCHEDULE PRICING STRUCTURE		
2	Events, Academy & Training Student Registration System	\$	(as appl)
2	Implementation Services & Training	\$	(as appl)

SECTION 3 PROPOSAL SELECTION AND EVALUATION CRITERIA

3.1 Proposal Selection

- 3.1.1 Selection of the successful proposal in response to this RFP will be made using the competitive sealed proposal process. The selection of the successful proposal may be made by TFS on the basis of the proposals initially submitted, without discussion, clarification, or modification. Alternatively, selection of the successful proposal may be made by TFS on the basis of negotiation with any of the proposers. TFS shall not disclose any information derived from the proposals submitted by competing proposers in conducting such discussions.
- 3.1.2 At TFS' sole option and discretion, TFS may discuss and negotiate all elements of the proposals submitted by selected proposers within a specific competitive range. For purposes of negotiation, a competitive range of acceptable or potentially acceptable proposals may be established comprising the highest rated proposals. Further action on proposals not included within the competitive range will be deferred pending the selection of the successful proposal; however, TFS reserves the right to include additional proposals in the competitive range if deemed to be in the best interest of TFS.
- 3.1.3 After submission of proposal, but before final selection of the successful proposer is made, TFS may permit a proposer to revise its proposal in order to obtain the proposer's best final offer. TFS will provide each proposer within the competitive range with an equal opportunity for discussion and revision of its proposal.

3.2 Evaluation Information

- 3.2.1 TFS will utilize an evaluation team for the evaluation of this RFP. The evaluation will include the overall response to the RFP. TFS must be confident that the respondent's proposal will meet the needs of the TFS. TFS will evaluate and make the award on the proposal that is determined to be the best value to the agency.
- 3.2.2 All proposals must be complete and convey all of the information requested to be considered responsive. If a proposal fails to conform to the essential requirements of the RFP, TFS alone will determine whether the variance is significant enough to consider the proposal susceptible to being made acceptable, and therefore a candidate for further consideration, or not susceptible to being made acceptable and therefore not considered for award. TFS is not bound to accept the lowest fee proposal if that proposal is not the best value to the agency as determined by TFS. TFS alone shall determine "best value" to the agency and TFS' judgment in this regard shall be considered final.
- 3.2.3 TFS may require a demonstration/presentation by proposer(s). During the evaluation, the TFS may request an on-site demonstration/presentation. TFS reserves the right to consider the demonstration/presentation in the evaluation criteria.
- 3.2.4 TFS reserves the right to reject any and all proposals.

Evaluation Criteria and Weights

Each proposal shall be evaluated on the ability to meet the requirements and to provide the best value to the Texas A&M Forest Service. Each proposal shall be evaluated by assigning points to each of the items listed below. The evaluation will be based on the following system:

<u>Criteria</u>	Possible Points
Experience, certifications, qualifications, financial standing, and past performance including experience in similar projects	30
Pricing	25
Quality, security and privacy, and reliability of goods and services, and extent to which goods and services meet the needs of TFS	20
Understanding of project scope, and ability to meet TFS deadlines	20
References	5
TOTAL	100

3.3 Proposer's Acceptance

By submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, Proposer agrees to all terms and conditions, specifications, and all other requirements set forth in this RFP, including the selection, evaluation, and award process and further accepts the Texas A&M Forest Service's judgment and decision of award.

SECTION 4 GENERAL INFORMATION

4.1 Submittal Deadline and Location

All proposals must be received by the Texas A&M Forest Service Purchasing Office no later than 2:00 p.m. Central Standard Time (CST), July 26th, 2019 in a sealed envelope or box that clearly shows the information as referenced in Section 4.3.4.

Proposals are to be submitted to:

MAIL, HAND DELIVER, AND /OR EXPRESS MAIL PROPOSAL TO:

Texas A&M Forest Service Purchasing Office 200 Technology Way Suite 1151 College Station, TX 77845-3424

Late proposals will not be considered under any circumstances. Late proposals properly identified will be returned to Respondent unopened.

Telephone and/or facsimile (fax) proposals are not acceptable under any circumstances.

4.2 Notice of Texas A&M Forest Service Holiday(s)

N/A

4.3 Submittal Instructions

- 4.3.1 Proposal responses including Execution of Offer (Section 8) must be signed by proposer's company official authorized to commit such proposals. Failure to sign the Execution of Offer may be basis for proposal disqualification.
- 4.3.2 One (1) signed original (marked "original") and three (3) reproduced hard copies (marked "copy"), or one (1) signed original (marked "original") and three (3) virus free CD-ROM copies of the complete proposal response is required.
- 4.3.3 All CD copies must either be in *Microsoft Office (DOC) software* or *Adobe Portable Document Format (PDF)*. All image files must be in one of the following formats: jpg, .fif, .bmp, or .tif. It is preferred that all image files are already inserted as part of a document such as PDF. Image files on the CD must be clearly named and referenced in your proposal response.

NOTE: The original signature on one (1) hard copy will serve as official signature of record for all CD copies.

- 4.3.4 Proposal response package (envelope/box/carton) must clearly show on at least one (1) exterior surface the following information:
 - RFP number
 - Opening date
 - Proposer's company name and address

4.3.5 Telephone and/or facsimile (fax) responses to this RFP are not acceptable.

4.4 Special Requirement for Responding Proposers

TFS is seeking to enter into an agreement with a qualified and experienced provider for the services described herein.

NOTE: Any proposal that the TFS determines does not clearly demonstrate the above minimum requirement will not be acceptable and will not be considered for further evaluation for award.

4.5 Proposal Content and Components

- 4.5.1 Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise description of proposer's ability to meet the requirements and specifications set forth in this RFP. Emphasis should be on completeness, clarity of content, and responsiveness to the requirements and specifications set forth in this RFP.
- 4.5.2 Proposers are requested to submit a proposal that represents their "best offer" as the Texas A&M Forest Service does not anticipate utilization of the "Best and Final Offer" process.
- 4.5.3 Proposal text is to be typed single-spaced on one (1) side of each page. All pages are to be on 8 ½ inch × 11-inch paper with all pages numbered sequentially and tabbed appropriately to identify each evaluation criteria. Proposal shall be bound by binder clip or hole-punched and placed in a 3-ring binder. Do not bind proposal with spiral binding, file folders, staples, paper clips, rubber bands, or envelopes.

4.5.4 The following documents are to be submitted as part of the proposal response:

- Completed and signed Execution of Offer
- Copy of proposer's written Civil Rights "Affirmative Action Compliance Program" or a statement as to why the proposer is not required to have such written program.
- Copy of proposer's Drug-Free Workplace policy
- References
- Itemized Pricing as per requirements of Section 2.2 (including a statement that pricing will be held firm for **ninety (90) days** from submittal deadline date)
- Completed Respondent's Questionnaire
- Copies of all addenda that may be issued for the RFP, signed by same authorized proposer representative which signs the Execution of Offer

4.5.5 The proposal response shall also include the following:

- A table of contents by section to the appropriate pages
- An executive overview that should be limited to approximately five (5) pages and that provides a concise overview of the services being offered to meet the requirements of this RFP, the proposer's general approach to providing the services and deliverables, and documentation as to why the proposer is the best qualified.
- A cost presentation as stipulated in Section 2.2 Pricing Structure
- A statement of qualifications that includes:
 - a) Introduction—(content at the discretion of the proposer)

- b) Company background—Must provide proposer's relevant experience (years in business)
- c) Qualifications—Information provided for professional and support staff and any subcontractors must demonstrate experience and qualifications in their particular work assignment for the project. Information provided for similar assessment work must be substantiated with current references.
- d) Project management—Describe project organization and management methods that are most appropriate to perform the services and provide deliverables as required in this RFP. The description shall include procedures, cost and time schedules, and any other management considerations appropriate to this RFP. Contact and project managers, and key personnel shall be identified. Any subcontractors shall be identified and the intended scope of their work detailed. Office locations for key personnel and any subcontractors shall be identified. The management methods shall address cost or price monitoring and control. Proposers data management and project tracking capabilites shall be described.
- Information for references—Listing of a minimum of three (3) separate and verifiable references for which the proposer has performed or is currently performing comparable work in the quality and scope of that specified in this RFP. The listing must include (for each reference) company name, address, phone number, and contact person; project title, size, term, and performance period; and brief description of the work and deliverables provided.

4.6 Texas A&M Forest Service Contact

All questions regarding this Request For Proposal must be directed in writing to:

Alan Degelman, C.P.M. Purchasing Department Head Email: adegelman@tfs.tamu.edu

Phone: 979-458-7380 Fax: 979-458-7386

The Texas A&M Forest Service specifically requests that Respondents **restrict all contact and questions regarding this RFP to the above named individual.**

4.7 Inquires and Interpretations

Responses to inquiries, which directly affect an interpretation or change to this RFP, will be issued in writing by addendum. Only inquires which are replied to by formal written addenda shall be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.

NOTICE: THE DEADLINE FOR WRITTEN QUESTIONS IS *Monday, July 22nd* at 2:00 P.M. CENTRAL STANDARD TIME (CST), 2019.

4.8 Open Records

Texas A&M Forest Service considers all information, documentation and other materials requested to be submitted in response to this solicitation to be of a non-confidential and/or non-proprietary nature and therefore shall be subject to public disclosure under the Texas Public Information Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter 552) after a contract is awarded.

Proposers are hereby notified that Texas A&M Forest Service strictly adheres to all Statutes, court decisions, and the opinions of the Texas Attorney General regarding the disclosure of RFP information.

4.9 Terms and Conditions

All terms and conditions and other requirements contained in this RFP shall govern any agreement issued as a result of this RFP. Additional or attached terms and conditions which are determined to be unacceptable to TFS may result in the disqualification of your proposal. Examples include, but are not limited to, liability for payment of taxes, subjugation to the laws of another State, and limitations to remedies.

SECTION 5 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

5.1 General

- 5.1.1 Proposal should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward and concise description of the Proposer's ability to meet requirements of this RFP. Emphasis should be on completeness, clarity of content, and responsiveness to the RFP's requirements.
- 5.1.2 The TFS reserves the right to accept or reject any and all proposals, to waive informalities and technicalities, and to accept the proposal considered the "best value" for the TFS. Additionally, all Proposers are hereby notified that the TFS shall consider all factors it believes to be relevant in the selection of the "best value" including but not limited to both subjective and objective criteria and the ability of Proposer to perform the requirements of this RFP. TFS' decision is final.
- 5.1.3 This RFP is a solicitation for proposals and is not a contract or an offer to contract. The TFS is not obligated to award a contract and reserves the right, at the TFS' exclusive option to: (1) enter into agreements or other contractual arrangements for all or any portion or portions of the requirements and specifications set forth is this RFP with one or more proposers; (2) reject any and all proposals and re-solicit proposals; or (3) reject any and all proposals and temporarily or permanently abandon the procurement, if deemed to be in the best interests of TFS.

Additionally, the TFS reserves the right to make an award(s) and/or enter into an agreement(s) that stipulates options to purchase all or only specific parts of the items and/or services included in the awarded proposal(s) on an "as funded" or "as needed" basis.

By responding to this RFP, proposer fully understands, agrees and accepts that award(s) and resulting agreement(s) for the purchase of any or all portions of the items and/or services included in this RFP is contingent upon availability of sufficient funding.

- 5.1.4 Proposals are to be **valid for a minimum of ninety (90) days from the submittal deadline date** to allow time for evaluation, selection, and any unforeseen delays.
- 5.1.5 The proposer agrees to protect the State of Texas and the TFS from claims involving infringement of patents or copyrights.
- 5.1.6 The proposer hereby assigns to TFS, any and all claims for overcharges associated with any contract resulting from this RFP that arise under the antitrust laws of the United States 15 U.S.C.A. Section 1, et seq. (1973) and that arise under the antitrust laws of the State of Texas, Texas Business and Commercial Code Ann. Sec. 15.01, et seq. (1967).
- 5.1.7 No substitutions or cancellations permitted without written approval of the TFS.
- 5.1.8 Upon award, delivery shall be effective as stated unless Seller obtains approval from TFS for late delivery. Delivery shall be made during normal working hours only unless TFS approves otherwise. Delivery may be a factor in award.
- 5.1.9 Proposals and any other information submitted by proposer in response to this RFP shall become the property of the TFS.

- 5.1.10 Proposers electing to respond to this RFP are responsible for all costs incurred by proposer for proposal preparation, submittal, presentations (oral or otherwise) that may be made, or any other cost. The TFS is not liable for any cost incurred by proposer.
- 5.1.11 Failure to comply with the requirements contained in this RFP may result in the rejection of the proposal. Proposals that are qualified with conditional clauses, alterations, items not called for in the RFP documents, or irregularities of any kind are subject to disqualification by TFS at its option.
- 5.1.12 Except as otherwise provided in this RFP, no proposal may be changed, amended, or modified after it has been submitted or filed in response to this RFP. However, upon written request by proposer, a proposal may be withdrawn or withdrawn and resubmitted at any time **prior** to the Submittal Deadline. No proposal may be withdrawn after the Submittal Deadline without TFS' consent, which shall be based on Proposer's written documentation evidencing a reason acceptable to TFS in its sole discretion.

5.2 Alternate Proposal

TFS reserves the right to consider alternate proposals submitted by proposers. Alternate proposals shall be clearly marked "Alternate" with the proposed alternates clearly defined and all pricing/cost advantages included, if applicable.

5.3 Time of Performance

Time is of the essence in the rendering of services hereunder. Seller agrees to perform all obligations and render services set forth per this RFP in accordance with the schedules herein and as mutually agreed upon between TFS and Seller during the term of any agreement resulting from this RFP. Seller will not be responsible for, or subject to default, because of any schedule changes or delays of deliverables that may be caused by the action(s) or non-action(s) of TFS.

5.4 Default

In the event that the Seller fails to carry out or comply with any of the terms and conditions of the agreement with TFS, TFS may notify the Seller of such failure or default in writing and demand that the failure or default be remedied within ten (10) calendar days; and in the event that the Seller fails to remedy such failure or default within the ten (10) calendar day period, TFS shall have the right to cancel the agreement upon ten (10) calendar days written notice.

The cancellation of the Agreement, under any circumstances whatsoever, shall not effect or relieve Seller from any obligation or liability that may have been incurred or will be incurred pursuant to the agreement and such cancellation by TFS shall not limit any other right or remedy available to TFS at law or in equity.

5.5 Termination

5.5.1 For Convenience:

The agreement may be terminated, without penalty, by the TFS without cause by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such termination to the Seller.

5.5.2 Upon award, the agreement is subject to termination, without penalty, either in whole or in part, if funds are not appropriated.

- 5.5.3 The insurance policy shall provide for termination by the carrier only upon presentation of a written notice to TFS ten (10) days prior to termination date.
- 5.5.4 In no event shall such termination by TFS as provided under this Section give rise to any liability on the part of TFS including, but not limited to, claims of Seller for compensation for anticipated profits, unabsorbed overhead, or interest on borrowing. TFS' sole obligation hereunder is to pay Seller for goods and services received and approved by TFS to the date of termination.

5.6 Warranties

In addition to all warranties established by law, Seller hereby warrants and agrees that:

- 5.6.1 All goods and services covered by the agreement shall conform to the specifications, drawings, samples or other descriptions set forth in the agreement or otherwise furnished or adopted by TFS, and shall be merchantable fit for the purpose intended, of best quality and workmanship, and free from all defects. TFS shall have the right of inspection and approval, and may, at Seller's expense, reject and return nonconforming goods or require re-performance of services that are not in compliance with the requirements of the agreement. Defects shall not be deemed waived by TFS' failure to notify Seller upon receipt of goods or completion of services, or by payment of invoice.
- 5.6.2 All goods and services provided under the agreement shall meet or exceed the Safety Standards established and promulgated under the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Public Law 91-596) and its regulations in effect or proposed as of the date of the agreement.
- 5.6.3 All goods and services delivered pursuant to the agreement shall conform to standards established for such goods or services in accordance with any applicable federal, state, or local laws and regulations, unless otherwise indicated in the agreement.
- 5.6.4 **TECHNOLOGY ACCESS CLAUSE**—The vendor expressly acknowledges that state funds may not be expended in connection with the purchase of an automated information system unless that system meets certain statutory requirements relating to accessibility by persons with visual impairments. Accordingly, the vendor represents and warrants to the Texas A&M Forest Service that the technology provided to the Texas A&M Forest Service for purchase is capable, either by virtue of features included within the technology or because it is readily adaptable by use with other technology, of:
 - 1. providing equivalent access for effective use by both visual and non-visual means;
 - 2. presenting information, including prompts used for interactive communications, in formats intended for non-visual use and;
 - 3. being integrated into networks for obtaining, receiving, and disseminating information used by individuals who are not blind or visually impaired.

For purposes of this paragraph, the phrase "equivalent access" means a substantially similar ability to communicate with or make use of the technology or by means such as assistive devices or services which would constitute reasonable accommodations under the Americans With Disabilities Act or similar state or federal laws. Examples of methods by which equivalent access may be provided include, but are not limited to, keyboard alternatives to mouse commands and other means of navigating graphical displays, and customizable display appearance.

5.7 Agreement Amendments

Any agreement resulting from this RFP may be modified or amended as negotiated and/or mutually agreed upon by TFS and Seller. No modification or amendment to any agreement resulting from this RFP shall become valid unless agreed in writing and signed by both the TFS and the Seller. All correspondence regarding modifications or amendments to the agreement must be forwarded to the TFS Purchasing Department for prior review and approval. Only the TFS Purchasing Department Head or his/her designee will be authorized to sign changes or amendments to any agreement resulting from this RFP.

5.8 Independent Vendor Status

Seller agrees that Seller and Seller's employees and agents have no employer-employee relationship with TFS. TFS shall not be responsible for the Federal Insurance Contribution Act (FICA) payments, federal or state unemployment taxes, income tax withholding, Workers Compensation Insurance payments, or any other insurance payments, nor will TFS furnish any medical or retirement benefits or any paid vacation or sick leave.

5.9 Right to Audit

At any time during the term of this agreement and for a period of four (4) years thereafter the USDA Forest Service, the Comptroller of the United States, TFS, or duly aurthorized audit representatives of these entities, at their own expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to have access to, and to incrementally audit, Seller's records that are related to this agreement. In the event such an audit by one or more of these entities reveals any errors/overpayments by TFS, Seller shall refund TFS the full amount of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or TFS at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owed to TFS from any payments due to Seller.

5.10 Title, Risk of Loss, and Freight

The title and risk of loss of any goods shall not pass to TFS until the goods are actually received, taken possession of, and accepted by the TFS at point of delivery. All goods furnished hereunder shall be delivered F.O.B. Destination, Freight Prepaid and Allowed. Seller shall be responsible for any and all freight claims.

5.11 Acceptance of Goods and Services

All goods furnished and all services performed under the agreement shall be to the satisfaction of TFS and in accordance with the specifications, requirements, terms and conditions of this RFP and the agreement. TFS reserves the right to inspect the goods furnished or services performed, and to determine the quality, acceptability, and fitness, of such goods or services.

All goods and equipment furnished must be new and unused at the time of delivery. All equipment must be provided with standard manufacturer's warranty. Instructions, service and parts manuals are to be furnished at no charge. All manuals must be in English.

Before full acceptance, all documentation on the project and model, as specified in Section 2, shall be provided.

5.12 Ownership of Deliverables

Upon acceptance by TFS of any and all deliverables, such deliverables shall become the property of and full ownership conveyed to the TFS. Such deliverables shall include, but not be limited to, models, maps,

charts, publications, reports and other documents, datasets, software (including licenses and permits), and any other items created by the work performed by Seller. All copyrights, printing/reprinting and publishing/republishing rights for any publications shall be in the name of, or conveyed to the TFS.

5.13 Sales and Use Tax

The TFS as an agency of the State of Texas, is exempt from State and Local Sales and Use Taxes pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act. The Seller may claim exemption from payment of applicable State taxes by complying with such procedures as may be prescribed by the State Comptroller of Public Accounts. Do not include taxes in prices quoted for a proposal in response to this RFP.

5.14 Invoicing

Seller shall submit one copy of an itemized invoice(s) to the designated invoice address showing the purchase order number and this RFP number. In case of a problem on a disputed invoice or charge, Seller will provide necessary information (i.e. duplicate invoice, shipping information and proof of delivery) at no extra charge to TFS within five (5) business days of request for such information.

All credit memos will reflect the purchase order number, this RFP number, and the original invoice number in which the charge was initiated.

5.15 Payment

Progress payments shall be made on a monthly (or other mutually agreed upon) basis for work completed/goods delivered which are accepted by TFS and within thirty (30) days of receipt of an uncontested invoice. TFS will incur no penalty for late payment if made in thirty (30) days or fewer from receipt of goods or services <u>and</u> an uncontested invoice (whichever is later).

This payment method and schedule shall be in effect unless otherwise approved by TFS.

5.16 Reporting

Seller will provide the Project Manager or his/her designee detailed progress and/or performance reports on a weekly, bi-weekly, or monthly basis as determined by TFS.

Seller may be required to have monthly conferences with a Technical Team, if such appointed by TFS. Seller will provide other reports as may be required or requested.

5.17 Observance of TFS Rules and Regulations

Seller agrees that at all times its employees will observe and comply with all regulations of the Texas A&M Forest Service, including but not limited to parking and security regulations.

5.18 Recall Notice

Seller shall, immediately upon discovery of same, advise TFS of any and all required replacement/modifications to equipment or component parts thereof or withdrawal of product by reason of safety hazard or recall regardless of the nature of same. Any verbal notification must be confirmed in writing within twenty-four (24) hours of such verbal notification. All such formal notices will be submitted to the Texas A&M Forest Service Purchasing Department.

5.19 Non-Disclosure and Sensitive Data

Seller and TFS acknowledge that they or their employees may, in the performance of any agreement resulting from this RFP, come into the possession of proprietary or confidential information owned by or in the possession of the other party. Neither party shall use any such information for its own benefit or make such information available to any person, firm corporation, or other organizations, whether or not directly or indirectly affiliated with Seller or TFS unless required by law.

5.20 Publicity

No public disclosures or news releases pertaining to this RFP or any details thereof shall be made public without prior written approval of the TFS. Seller agrees that it shall not publicize any agreement or disclose, confirm, or deny any details thereof to third parties or use any photographs or video recordings of the TFS name in connection with any sales promotion or publicity event without the prior written approval of TFS.

5.21 Severability

If one or more provisions of the resultant agreement, or the application of any provision to any party or circumstance, is held invalid, unenforceable, or illegal in any respect, the remainder of the agreement and the application of the provision to other parties or circumstances shall remain valid and in full force and effect

5.22 Non-Waiver of Defaults

Any failure of TFS at any time, to enforce or require the strict keeping and performance of any of the terms and conditions of this RFP and any resulting agreement shall not constitute a waiver of such terms, conditions, or rights, and shall not affect or impair same, or the right of TFS at any time to avail itself of same.

5.23 License and Permits

Seller will obtain and maintain at its own expense, and in its name, all necessary licenses and permits required to perform the services required herein.

5.24 Non-discrimination

Seller and its agents and employees are prohibited from engaging in or allowing any impermissible discrimination on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, age, sex, disability, or veteran status in relation to (1) Seller's employment practices; (2) the performance of Seller's obligations under the agreement. In performing its obligations under the agreement, Seller shall be subject to and shall comply with all currently effective or subsequently promulgated polices on non-discrimination issued by either the TFS or the Texas A&M University System.

Rehab Act, VEVRAA, Section 503:

This contractor and subcontractor shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Moreover, these regulations require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take

affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, protected veteran status or disability.

5.25 Compliance with Law

Seller shall comply with any applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations in performing its operations under the agreement.

5.26 Federal Laws and Regulations

By submitting a signed proposal in response to this RFP, the proposer certifies that proposer is fully informed of, and in full compliance with its obligations under existing applicable federal laws and regulations, including, but not limited to:

- Title V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 USC 2000(D));
- Civil Rights Act of 1991;
- Executive Order 11246, as amended (41 CFR 60-1 and 60-2);
- Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Act of 1974, as amended (41 CFR 60-250);
- Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (41 CFR 60-741);
- Age Discimination Act of 1975 (42 USC 6101 et seq.);
- Non-segregated Facilities (41 CFR 60-1);
- Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (PL 100-690);
- Federal Procurement or Nonprocurement Programs (Executive Order 12549 and 12689);
- Bryd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 USC 1352);
- Clean Air Act of 1970 (42 USC 7401 et seq.);
- Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 USC 1251 et seq.);
- Omnibus Reconciliation Provision, Section 952;
- Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, Sections 6,7, and 12, as amended;
- Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 12101 et seq.);
- Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986;
- Utilization of Small Business Concerns and Small Business Concerns Owned and Controlled by Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals (PL 96-507);
- Federal Occupational Safety and Health Law (PL 91-596) including its regulations in effect or proposed as of the date of the agreement; and
- OSHA Statement Vendor represents and warrants that all articles and services covered by this document meet or exceed the safety standards established and promulgated under Federal Occupational Safety and Health Law (Public Law 91:596) and its regulations in effect or proposed as of the date of this document.
- Certification of Non-segregated Facilities of Equal Employment Opportunities Compliance If this transaction exceeds \$10,000 or if the seller anticipates or has a history of exceeding \$10,000 in sales to the Texas A&M Forest Service within any continuous twelve (12) month period, the acceptance of this document will signify their compliance with the provisions of Section 202 of Executive Order no. 11246 pertaining to Equal Employment Opportunities effective September 24, 1965 and its amendment Executive Order no. 11375 effective October 13, 1967 insofar as Section 202 is affected by changing the word "creed" to "religion" and by adding the word "sex". The signing will also service

as written affirmation of the following Certification of Non-segregated Facilities. By the acceptance of this document, the bidder, offeror, applicant or subcontractor certifies that they do not maintain or provide for their employees any segregated facilities at any of their establishments, and that they do not permit their employees to perform their services at any location under their control, where segregated facilities are maintained. They certify further that they will not maintain or provide for their employees any segregated facilities at any of their establishments, and that they will not permit their employees to perform services at any location under their control where segregated facilities are maintained. The bidder, offeror, applicant or subcontractor agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunity clause in this contract. As used in this certification the term "segregated facilities" means any waiting room, work area, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, because of habit, local custom, or otherwise. They further agree that (except where they have obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors for specific time periods) they will obtain identical certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding \$10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clause, that they will retain such certifications in their files and that they will forward the following notice to such subcontractors (except where the proposed subcontractors have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods).

- A Certification of Non-segregated Facilities must be submitted prior to the award of a subcontract exceeding \$10,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clause. The certification may be submitted either for each subcontract or all subcontracts during a period (i.e., quarterly, semiannually, or annually).
- Note: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U/S.C. 1001.
- Affirmative Action Compliance In addition to the above certification, if this transaction exceeds \$50,000 the seller must have included as part of the bid a copy of their written Civil Rights "Affirmative Action Compliance Program". If the bidder is not required to have such a written program, they must have so stated on the bid form indicating the reason it is not required. Paragraph 60.741.4 of Title 41 of Part 60-741 Affirmative Action Obligations of Contracts and Subcontracts for Handicapped Workers is incorporated by reference for all contracts of \$3,500 or greater.
- This contract for goods and/or services incorporates by reference the equal employment opportunity clause provisions of Executive Order no. 11246, as amended; Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; and the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended; and all regulations and relevant orders of the U.S. Secretary of Labor. Awarded vendor shall comply with any applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations in performing its operations under any awarded contract. Signing this RFP with a false statement is a breach of contract and shall void this submittal.

5.27 Alcohol- and Drug-Free Workplace

The TFS is committed to maintaining an alcohol- and drug-free workplace. Possession, use, or being under the influence of alcohol or controlled substances by Seller's employees while in the performance of any

services provided under an agreement resulting from this RFP is prohibited. Violation of this requirement shall constitute grounds for termination of the agreement.

Additionally, the proposer is required to include in their proposal response, a copy of the proposer's Drug-Free Workplace policy.

5.28 Force Majeure

No party shall have any liability to the other party under the agreement by reason of any delay or failure to perform any obligation or covenant if the delay or failure to perform is occasioned by an act of God, storm, fire, casualty, unanticipated work stoppage, strike, lockout, labor dispute, civil disturbance, riot, war, national emergency, act of Government, act of public enemy, or other cause of similar or dissimilar nature beyond that party's control (herein called "Force Majeure").

5.29 Governing Law

The agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Texas law shall govern regardless of any language in any attachment or other document that the Seller may provide.

5.30 Venue

Any action between the parties arising from this RFP and any resulting agreement shall be maintained in the courts of Brazos County, Texas.

SECTION 6 CONTRACTUAL REQUIREMENTS

6.1 Insurance

The Seller/Contractor shall not commence work until all of the insurance specified on **Attachment B** has been obtained and certificates of such insurance in force have been filed with and accepted by TFS. Insurance coverage shall provide for a ten (10) day notice of cancellation or material change to the policy coverage and/or limits and the certificate of insurance in force must include a notice that the policy or policies do contain these provisions. Acceptance of insurance certificates by TFS shall not relieve or decrease the liability of the Seller/Contractor.

Unless otherwise specified, Seller/Contractor shall provide and maintain, until the work included in this RFP is completed and accepted by TFS, the minimum insurance coverages outlined on <u>Attachment B</u>.

Certificates of Insurance must be mailed to:

TEXAS A&M FOREST SERVICE Purchasing Department ATTN: Alan Degelman 200 Technology Way Suite 1151 College Station, TX 77845-3424

OR

certificate(s) may be faxed to: 979-458-7386

By submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, Proposer acknowledges and affirms these insurance requirements are understood and Proposer will provide such insurance as required herein if awarded a contract resulting from this RFP.

6.2 HUB – Historically Underutilized Businesses

All agencies of the State of Texas are required to make a good faith effort to utilize Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUBs) in procurements for commodities and services. It is the intention of the State of Texas and the Texas A&M Forest Service (TFS), as a good faith effort, to encourage the use of Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUBs) in all prime contracts, subcontracts, and purchasing transactions. TFS initiatives are to our prime contractors and core suppliers to achieve these ends through race, ethnic, and gender-neutral means. All procurements exceeding \$100,000 for either goods and/or services must include a completed State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) submitted by vendor/contractor.

6.3 Public Disclosure

- (a) Bidder acknowledges that Texas A&M Forest Service is obligated to strictly comply with the Public Information Act, Chapter 552, *Texas Government Code*, in responding to any request for public information pertaining to this Agreement, as well as any other disclosure of information required by applicable Texas law.
- (b) Upon Texas A&M Forest Service's written request, bidder will provide specified public information exchanged or created under this Agreement that is not otherwise excepted from disclosure under chapter

- 552, Texas Government Code, to Texas A&M Forest Service in a non-proprietary format acceptable to Texas A&M Forest Service. As used in this provision, "public information" has the meaning assigned Section 552.002, *Texas Government Code*, but only includes information to which Texas A&M Forest Service has a right of access.
- (c) Bidder acknowledges that Texas A&M Forest Service may be required to post a copy of the fully executed Agreement on its Internet website in compliance with Section 2261.253(a)(1), *Texas Government Code*.

6.4 Indemnification

Seller agrees to indemnify and hold the State of Texas, the Texas A&M Forest Service, their officers, employees, and agents (the Indemnified Parties) harmless from and indemnify each against any and all liabilities, actions, damages, suits, proceedings, judgments, and costs (excluding attorney's fees) for claims resulting from the acts or omissions of Seller or the acts or omissions of others under Seller's supervision and control.

6.5 Other Benefits

It is understood and agreed that no benefits, payments ,or considerations received by Seller for the performance of services associated with and pertinent to the resultant agreement shall accrue, directly or indirectly, to any employees, elected or appointed officers or representatives, or any other person identified as agents of, or who are by definition an employee of the State.

6.6 Alternative Dispute Resolution

- (1) The dispute resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260 of the Texas Government Code shall be used, as further described herein, by TFS and the Proposer/Seller/Contractor to attempt to resolve any claim for breach of contract made by Proposer/Seller/Contractor:
 - (A) A Proposer's/Seller's/Contractor's claim for breach of this contract that the parties cannot resolve in the ordinary course of business shall be submitted to the negotiation process provided in Chapter 2260, subchapter B, of the Texas Government Code. To initiate the process, Proposer/Seller/Contractor shall submit written notice, as required by subchapter B of Chapter 2260, to Robby DeWitt, Associate Director for Finance and Administration. Said notice shall specifically state the provisions of Chapter 2260, subchapter B, are being invoked. A copy of the notice shall also be given to all other representatives of the Texas A&M Forest Service and the Proposer/Seller/Contractor otherwise entitled to notice under the parties' contract. Compliance by the Proposer/Seller/Contractor with Subchapter B is a condition precedent to the filing of a contested case proceeding under Chapter 2260, subchapter C, Texas Government Code.
 - (B) The contested case process provided in Chapter 2260, subchapter C of the Texas Government Code is Proposer's/seller's/Contractor's sole and exclusive process for seeking a remedy for any and all alleged breaches of contract by Texas A&M Forest Service, if the parties are unable to resolve their disputes under subchapter (A) of this paragraph.
 - (C) Compliance with the contested case process provided in subchapter C is a condition precedent to seeking consent to sue from the Legislature under Chapter 107 of the Texas Civil Practices and Remedies Code. Neither the execution of this contract by Texas A&M Forest Service nor any other conduct of any representative of Texas A&M Forest Service relating to this contract shall be considered a waiver of sovereign immunity to suit.

- (1) The submission, processing, and resolution of the Proposer's/Seller's/Contractor's claim is governed by the published rules adopted by the Office of the Attorney General of the State of Texas pursuant to Chapter 2260, as currently effective, hereafter enacted or subsequently amended. These rules are found under Title 1, Part 3 Chapter 68 of the Texas Administrative Code.
- (2) Neither the occurrence of an event nor the pendency of a claim constitutes grounds for the suspension of performance by Proposer/Seller/Contractor, in whole or in part.
- (3) The designated individual responsible on behalf of Texas A&M Forest Service for examining any claim or counterclaim and conducting any negotiations related thereto as required under Section 2260.052 of the Texas Government Code shall be Robby DeWitt, Associate Director for Finance and Administration at (979) 458-7300.

6.7 Contract Administration

Upon award and execution of an agreement or contract, administration of such agreement or contract will be by a TFS Contract Administrator. All issues relating to the agreement or contract including, but not limited to, contract changes or modifications, Contractor performance, contract renewals, cancellation, and disputes will be handled by the TFS Contract Administrator. Contractor will coordinate with the TFS Contract Administrator on all issues related to the agreement or contract.

The TFS Contract Administrator will be **Terry Smith**, or his designee. Contact information is as follows:

TEXAS A&M FOREST SERVICE Purchasing Office 200 Technology Way Suite 1151 College Station, TX 77845-3424

Phone: 979-458-7380 Fax: 979-458-7386

Email: tsmith@tfs.tamu.edu

6.8 Project Management

The project will be managed by a TFS Project Manager. The Project Manager will coordinate and schedule all work with the Contractor. The Project Manager will be the point of contact for all project information and direction. The Project Manager will manage timetables, process payment requests for goods and services received, coordinate with Contractor on problems and issues to insure they are resolved quickly, and keep TFS Contract Administrator informed on the status of the project. All goods and services supplied by Contractor for this project must be reviewed and accepted by the Project Manager.

The TFS Project Manager will be Casey Bryan, or his designee. Contact information is as follows:

TEXAS A&M FOREST SERVICE ATTN: Casey Bryan 200 Technology Way, Suite 1120 College Station, TX 77845 cbryan@tfs.tamu.edu

SECTION 7 KEY EVENTS SCHEDULE

7.1 Listed below are the important events and dates by which they must occur. TFS reserves the right to change any of these dates/times if determined necessary. Any change in dates/times of events that are to occur prior to and including deadline for vendors to submit responses to proposal will be issued by written addenda.

Monday, July 22nd, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m.

Deadline for questions from vendors.

Tuesday, July 23rd, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m.

Notification of Questions and Answers by means of Addendum.

Friday July 26th, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m.

Deadline for vendors to submit responses to proposal.

First week of_August, 2019

Complete review and evaluation process.

Make award.

End of August, 2019

Execute contract and issue purchase order.

To Be Decided by Project Manager, 2019

Commencement of Work

SECTION 8

EXECUTION OF OFFER

<u>RFP-19-01</u> Event, Academy & Training Registration System

<u>Notice:</u> This Section (Execution of Offer) <u>must</u> be completed, signed, dated, and returned with respondent's proposal. Failure to do so will result in the rejection of your proposal.

In compliance with this RFP, and subject to all the conditions herein, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish any or all commodities or services at the prices quoted. Signing this proposal with a false statement is a breach of contract and shall void the submitted proposal or any resulting contracts, and the Proposer shall be removed from all proposal lists.

By signature hereon affixed, the Proposer hereby certifies that:

8.1 Proposer Affirmation

- 1) The Proposer has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to a public servant in connection with the submitted proposal.
- 2) The Proposer is not currently delinquent in the payment of any franchise taxes owed the State of Texas.
- 3) Neither the Proposer or the firm, corporation, partnership, or institution represented by the Proposer or anyone acting for such firm, corporation, or institution has violated the antitrust laws of this State, codified in Section 15.01, et seq., Texas Business and Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, nor communicated directly or indirectly the proposal made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of business.
- 4) Pursant to Section 2155.004(a) Government Code, the Proposer has not received compensation for participation in the preparation of the specifications for this Proposal.
- 5) Pursuant to Section 231.006 (d) Family Code (re: child support), the Proposer certifies that the individual or business entity named in this proposal is not ineligible to receive the specified payment and acknowledges that any resulting contract from this proposal may be terminated and payment may be withheld if this certification is inaccurate.
- 6) Pursuant to Section 2155.004(b) Government Code the Proposer certifies that the individual or business entity named in this offer is not ineligible to receive the specified contract and acknowledges that any contract resulting from this RFP may be terminated and/or payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate.
- 7) The Proposer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State of Texas, all of its officers, agents and employees from and against all claims, actions, suits, demands, proceedings, cost, damages, and liabilities arising out of, connected with, or resulting from any acts or omissions of Proposer or any agent, employee, subcontractor, or supplier of Proposer in the execution or performance of any contract resulting from this Proposal.
- 8) Proposer agrees that any payment due under any contract resulting from this Proposal will be applied towards toward eliminating any debt or delinquency, regardless of when it arises, including but not limited to delinquent taxes and child support that is owed to the State of Texas.

- 9) Proposer agrees to comply with TX Government Code 2155.4441, pertaining to service contract use of products produced in the State of Texas.
- 10) Proposer understands that acceptance of funds under any contract which may result from this RFP acts as acceptance of the authority of the State Auditors Office, or any successor agency, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. Proposer further agrees to cooperate fully with the State Auditors Office or its successor in the conduct of the audit or investigation, including providing all records requested. Proposer will ensure that this clause concerning the authority to audit funds received indirectly by subcontractors through the awarded Proposer and the requirements to cooperate is included in any subcontract it awards.
- 11) Proposer certifies that they are in compliance with Section 669.003 of the TX Government Code, relating to contracting with executive head of a State agency. If Section 669.003 applies, Proposer will complete the following information in order for the Proposal to be evaluated:

Name of Former Executive	
Name of the State Agency	
Date of Separation from State Agency	
Position with Proposer	
Date of Employment with Proposer	

- 12) Pursant to Section 231.006 (c), Family Code, Proposal must include names and Social Security Numbers of each person with at least 25% ownership of the business entity submitting the Proposal. Proposers that have pre-registered this information on the TBPC Centralized Master Bidders List have satisfied this requirement. If not pre-registered attach name and socical security number for each person (otherwise this information must be provided prior to contract award)
- 13) Proposer certifies that Proposer is in compliance with all federal laws and regulations pertaining to Equal Employment Opportunities and Affirmation Action and that Proposer has included in their proposal response, a written copy of their Civil Rights "Affirmative Action Compliance Program" or a statement as to why Proposer is not required to have such program.
- 14) Proposer certifies that Proposer maintains an alcohol- and drug-free workplace and that Proposer has included in their proposal response, a copy of their Drug-Free Workplace policy.
- 15) Proposer certifies that Proposer is not currently suspended or debarred and that no principals are suspended or debarred from the Federal Procurement or Nonprocurement Programs per common rule Executive Order's 12549 and 12689.
- 16) Proposer certifies that Proposer has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or a member of Congress, officer, or employee of Congress or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or nmodification of any federal contract covered by the Bryd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 USC 1352).
- 17) Proposer certifies that Proposer agrees to comply with all standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act of 1970 (42 USC 7401 et seq.) and The Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 USC 1251 et seq.).

- 18) Proposer certifies that Proposer is aware of, is fully informed about, and is in full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances including, but not limited to the federal laws and regulations referenced in Section 5.27 of the RFP and as othewise may be applicable to this RFP.
- 19) Proposer acknowledges and agrees that (1) this RFP is a solicitation for proposal and is not a contract or an offer to contract; (2) the submission of a proposal by Proposer in response to this RFP will not create a contact between the Texas A&M Forest Service and Proposer; (3) Texas A&M Forest Service has made no representation or warranty, written or oral, that one or more contracts with Texas A&M Forest Service will be awarded under this RFP; and (4) Proposer shall bear, at is sole risk and responsibility, any cost which arises from Proposer's preparation of a response to this RFP.
- 20) Proposer, if selected by Texas A&M Forest Service, will maintain all insurance as required by this RFP or any contract resulting from this RFP.

8.2 Signature and Authority to Bind in Contract

The person signing the proposal shall show title or authority to bind his/her firm in contract. Failure to manually sign proposal will disqualify the proposal. Proposal shall give Payee Identification Number PIN (formerly Vendor ID), full firm name and address of Proposer (enter in spaces provided if not shown). The Payee Identification Number is the taxpayer number assigned by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of Texas. Enter this number in the spaces provided on the Execution of Offer. If this number is not know, enter the FEI or social security number (for sole owner):

Date:	
This proposal consist of pages number (1) through	
Federal Employer's Identification no. (FEI)	
Sole Owner should enter social security no	
Proposer/Company:	
Address:	
City/State/Zip:	
Telephone No.:	
Fax No.:	
E-mail	
Name (Typed/Printed):	
Title:	
Signature (Ink):	
Check below if preference claimed under Rule TAC 20.38 (() 7. Energy efficient products () 8. Rubberized asphalt paving material () 9. Recycled motor oil and lubricants () 10. Products producted at facilities located on formerly contaminated property () 11. Products and services from economically depressed or blighted areas () 12. Vendors that meet or exceed air quality standards
*By signing this offer, Proposer certifies that if a Texas address is shown as the addre of the Proposer, Proposer qualifies as a Texas Bidder as defined in TAC Rule, Title 3.	

NOTICE: SECTION 8 (EXECUTION OF OFFER) MUST BE COMPLETED, SIGNED, DATED, AND RETURNED WITH RESPONDENT'S PROPOSAL. FAILURE TO DO SO WILL RESULT IN THE REJECTION OF YOUR PROPOSAL.

SECTION 9 RESPONDENT'S QUESTIONNAIRE

The respondent recognizes and accepts that in selecting a company/agent the Texas A&M Forest Service will rely, in part, on the answers and information provided in response to this Section. Accordingly, respondent warrants to the best of its knowledge that all responses are true, correct and complete. The Texas A&M Forest Service reserves the right to contact each reference listed by Proposer and shall be free from any liability to respondent for conducting such inquiry.

1.	Legal name of Proposer's Company:
2.	Address of Proposer's office that will provide the requirements of this RFP under a resulting agreement:
3.	Number of years in business:
4.	Type of Operation: Individual Partnership Corporation Government Other
	Number of employees: (company wide) Number of employees: (servicing location)
	Annual sales volume: (company wide) Annual sales volume: (servicing location)

- 5. Provide statement confirming that you will provide a copy of your company's audited financial statements for the past two (2) years, upon request from TFS.
- 6. Provide statement confirming that you will provide a financial rating of your company (such as Dunn and Bradstreet Analysis) which indicates the financial stability of your company, if requested by TFS.
- 7. Is your company currently for sale or involved in any transaction to expend or to become acquired by another business entity? If yes, please explain the impact both in organizational and directional terms.
- 8. Provide any details of all past or pending litigation or claims filed against your company that would negatively impact your company's performance under an agreement with TFS.
- 9. Is your company currently in default on any loan agreement or financing agreement with any bank, financial institution, or other entity? If yes, specify date(s), details, circumstances, and prospects for resolution.
- 10. Provide statement confirming, if selected, Proposer will provide certificate of insurance as stipulated in this RFP.

ATTACHMENT A

Standard Agreement Service Contract

		Contract No
	EXAS A&M FOREST SERVICE e Texas A&M University System	A Member Of
		<u>AGREEMENT</u>
ent Fo	tered into effective as of	A&M Forest Service and Seller ("Agreement") is made and (the "Effective Date"), by and between the Texas A&M, ("Seller"), Federal Tax Identification Number
W]	ITNESSETH, that the Texas A&M Fore	st Service and Seller hereby agree:
1.	Scope of the Work The Seller shall furnish items and performance Contract Documents entitled:	orm services as per specifications and requirements in the
	(RFP-19-001 Event	Academy & Training Registration System)
2.	unless, prior to terminat	mence on the Effective Date and terminate on ion date, Agreement is extended by mutual written consent of al twelve month periods beginning onand period.
3.	the Texas A&M Forest Service solely. all or only specific parts of the items as proposal. The Seller shall only provide A&M Forest Service purchase order/s.	f Purchase ade on an "as needed" and "as funded" basis as determined by The Texas A&M Forest Service reserves the right to purchase and/or services included in RFP-19-01, and Seller's awarded te items and/or services authorized by the issuance of a Texas No guarantee of purchase is made or implied and any element is contingent upon availability of sufficient funding.
4.	order/s and satisfactorily provided by S	nensurate with items and services authorized by purchase Seller, and, subject to Agreement Amendments, adjustments, appenses, the Agreement Amount shall not exceed

5. Partial Payments

The Texas A&M Forest Service shall make partial payments as stipulated in the RFP-19-01.

\$ without prior written approval of the Texas A&M Forest Service.

6. Final Payment

Final payment shall be due upon completion of this Agreement and TFS acceptance of all items and services purchased under this Agreement. Before issuance of final payment, the Seller shall submit evidence, satisfactory to the Texas A&M Forest Service that all payrolls, suppliers, subcontractors and any other indebtedness of Seller connected with this Agreement have been paid in full.

7. Agreement Terms and Conditions

- A. This Agreement shall be governed by all terms and conditions and other requirements contained in RFP-19-01.
- B. This Agreement, together with the Contract Documents referenced in Section 8 of this Agreement, constitute the sole agreement of the parties and supersede any and all other oral or written understanding or agreements.
- C. This Agreement may not be amended or modified except as stipulated in RFP-19-01.
- D. This Agreement may not be cancelled or terminated except as stipulated in RFP-19-01. Upon cancellation or termination, Seller shall be entitled to payment of such amount as shall compensate Seller for the goods and services satisfactorily provided and performed from the time of the last payment to the cancellation/termination date, provided Seller shall have delivered to the Texas A&M Forest Service all statements, reports, documents, and other materials as required by the Contract Documents and prepared by Seller prior to cancellation/termination. Not withstanding any provision in the Agreement to the contrary, the Texas A&M Forest Service shall not be required to pay or reimburse Seller for any goods or services provided or expenses incurred by Seller after the date of the cancellation/termination notice which could have been avoided or mitigated by Seller.
- E. This Agreement is not assignable without the express written consent of both parties, prior to any such assignment.
- F. This Agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Texas law shall govern regardless of any language in any attachment or other document that Seller may provide. Venue for any action between the parties arising from this Agreement shall be maintained in the courts of Brazos County, Texas.
- G. To the extent permitted by the laws and constitution of the State of Texas, seller shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State of Texas, the Texas A&M Forest Service, and all officers, agents, and employees of these entities from and against all claims, actions, suits, demands, proceedings, costs, damages, and liabilities, arising out of, connected with, or resulting from any acts or omissions of Seller or any agent, employee, subcontractor, or supplier of Seller in the execution or performance of this Agreement.
- H. All notices, consents, approvals, demands, requests, or other communications provided for, required of, or permitted to be given under any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given or served when delivered by hand delivery, delivered by an express delivery service, or when deposited in the U.S. mail by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, and addressed as follows:

Texas A&M Forest Service
Purchasing Office
200 Technology Way Suite 1151
College Station, TX, 77845
Attention: Alan Degelman

Seller

or such other person or address as may be given in writing by either party to the other in accordance to the aforesaid.

- I. (1) The dispute resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260 of the Texas Government Code shall be used, as further described herein, by Texas A&M Forest Service and the Contractor to attempt to resolve any claim for breach of contract made by the contractor:
- (a) A contractor's claim for breach of this contract that the parties cannot resolve in the ordinary course of business shall be submitted to the negotiation process provided in Chapter 2260, subchapter B, of the Texas Government Code. To initiate the process, the contractor shall submit written notice, as required by subchapter B, to Robby DeWitt, Associate Director for Finance and Administration. Said notice shall specifically state the provisions of Chapter 2260, subchapter B, are being invoked. A copy of the notice shall also be given to all other representatives of Texas A&M Forest Service and the contractor otherwise entitled to notice under the parties' contract. Compliance by the contractor with subchapter B is a condition precedent to the filing of a contested case proceeding under Chapter 2260, subchapter C, of the Texas Government Code.
- (b) The contested case process provided in Chapter 2260, subchapter C, of the Texas Government Code is the contractor's sole and exclusive process for seeking a remedy for any and all alleged breaches of contract by Texas A&M Forest Service if the parties are unable to resolve their disputes under subparagraph (A) of this paragraph.
- (c) Compliance with the contested case process provided in subchapter C is a condition precedent to seeking consent to sue from the Legislature under Chapter 107 of the Civil Practices and Remedies Code. Neither the execution of this contract by Texas A&M Forest Service nor any other conduct of any representative of Texas A&M Forest Service relating to the contract shall be considered a waiver of sovereign immunity to suit.
- (2) The submission, processing, and resolution of the contractor's claim is governed by the published rules adopted by the Office of the Attorney General of the State of Texas pursuant to Chapter 2260, as currently effective, hereafter enacted or subsequently amended. These rules are found under Title 1, Part 3, Chapter 68 of the Texas Administrative Code.
- (3) Neither the occurrence of an event nor the pendency of a claim constitutes grounds for the suspension of performance by the contractor, in whole or in part.
- (4) The designated individual responsible on behalf of Texas A&M Forest Service for examining any claim or counterclaim and conducting any negotiations related thereto as required under Title 10, Subchapter B, Section 2260.052 of the Texas Government Code shall be Robby Dewitt, Associate Director for Finance and Administration at 979-458-7300.

8. The Contract Documents

The following documents, together with this Agreement, form the Contract Documents and they are as fully a part of the Contract Documents as if hereto attached or herein repeated:

- (RFP-19-01) including attachments, and
- (any addenda referenced here), and
- Seller's awarded proposal, and
- Seller's completed HUB Subcontracting Plan (if required), and
- Texas A&M Forest Service award letter (*if required*), and
- Any Agreement Amendment, Agreement Extension, or purchase order issued for this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Texas A&M Forest Service and the Seller have executed and delivered this Agreement to be effective as of the Effective Date.

TEXAS A&M FOREST SERVICE	SELLER
By	
Associate Director For Finance and Administration	Company Name
Approval Recommended:	Ву
	Signature
Purchasing Department Head	Print or Type Name
	 Title

ATTACHMENT B

TEXAS A&M FOREST SERVICE MINIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

TYPE OF COVERAGE LIMITS OF LIABILITY

1. <u>Employer's Liability:</u>

2.

Bodily Injury by Accident \$500,000 each accident
Bodily Injury by Disease \$500,000 each employee
Bodily Injury by Disease \$500,000 Policy Limit
Comprehensive General: \$1,000,000 aggregate

Comprehensive General: \$1,000,000 aggregate

Liability \$1,000,000 products/completed operations

Combined Bodily \$1,000,000 personal & advertising liability

Injury & Property Damage \$1,000,000 each occurrence

\$50,000 fire damage \$5,000 medical expense

3. <u>Comprehensive Automobile Liability</u> \$1,000,000 combined single limit

4. <u>Owner's Protective Liability Insurance</u> Policy:

The Contractor shall obtain at Contractor' expense an Owner's Protective Liability Insurance Policy naming the State of Texas and its employees as named insured and the Texas A&M Forest Service, named as additional insured, with the following limits:

a. Bodily Injury \$1,000,000 each occurrence

\$1,000,000 aggregate

- 5. Flood insurance when specified.
- 6. Umbrella coverage when specified.
- 7. <u>Worker's Compensation</u> Statutory TWCC, Rule 110.110

(A) Definitions:

Certificate of coverage ("certificate") -- A copy of a certificate of insurance, a certificate of authority to self-insure issued by the Commission, or a coverage agreement (TWCC-81, TWCC-82, TWCC-83 TWCC-84), showing statutory workers' compensation insurance coverage for the person's or entity's employees providing services on a project, for the duration of the project.

Duration of the project -- includes the time from the beginning of the work on the project until the Contractor's/person's work on the project has been completed and accepted by the governmental entity.

Persons providing services on the project ("subcontractor" in Section 406.096 of Texas Labor Code)--includes all persons or entities performing all or part of the services the Contractor has undertaken to perform on the project, regardless of whether that person contracted directly with the Contractor and regardless of whether that person has employees. This includes, without limitation, independent Contractors, subcontractors, leasing companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or employees of any entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the project. "Services" include, without limitation, providing, hauling, or delivering equipment or materials, or providing labor, transportation, or other service related to a project. "Services" does not include activities unrelated to the project such as food/beverage vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets.

- (B) The Contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Title 5, for all employees of the Contractor providing services on the project, for the duration of the project.
- (C) The Contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the governmental entity prior to being awarded the contract.
- (D) If the coverage period shown on the Contractor's current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project, the Contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new certificate of coverage with the governmental entity showing that coverage has been extended.
- (E) The Contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project, and provide to the governmental entity:
 - (1) A certificate of coverage, prior to the person beginning work on the project, so the governmental entity will have on file certificates of coverage showing coverage for all persons providing services on the project; and
 - (2) No later than seven days after receipt by the Contractor, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project.
- (F) The Contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the project and for one year thereafter.
- (G) The Contractor shall notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10 days after the Contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project.
- (H) The Contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed by the Texas Workers' Compensation Commission, informing all persons providing services on the project that they are required to be covered, and stating how a person may verify coverage and report lack of coverage.
- (I) The Contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services on a project, to:
 - (1) Provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and

- filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Title 5, for all of its employees providing services on the project, for the duration of the project;
- (2) Provide to the Contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the project, a certificate of coverage showing that coverage is being provided for all employees of the person providing services on the project, for the duration of the project;
- (3) Provide the Contractor, prior to the end of the coverage period, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project;
- (4) Obtain from each other person with whom it contracts, and provide to the Contractor:
 - (a) A certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on the project; and
 - (b) A new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, prior to the end of the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project;
- (5) Retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for one year thereafter;
- (6) Notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10 days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project; and
- (7) Contractually require each person with whom it contracts, to perform as required by Paragraphs (1)-(7), with the certificates of coverage to be provided to the person for whom they are providing services.
- (J) By signing this contract or providing or causing to be provided a certificate of coverage, the Contractor is representing to the governmental entity that all employees of the Contractor who will provide services on the project will be covered by workers' compensation coverage for the duration of the project, that the coverage will be based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all coverage agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-insured, with the Commission's Division of Self-Insurance Regulation. Providing false or misleading information may subject the Contractor to administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil penalties, or other civil actions.
- (K) The Contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the Contractor which entitles the governmental entity to declare the contract void if the Contractor does not remedy the breach within ten days after receipt of notice of breach from the governmental entity.

Rev. 2/17



HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) QUICK CHECKLIST

While this HSP Quick Checklist is being provided to merely assist you in readily identifying the sections of the HSP form that you will need to complete, it is very important that you adhere to the instructions in the HSP form and instructions provided by the contracting agency.

- If you will be awarding all of the subcontracting work you have to offer under the contract to only Texas certified HUB vendors, complete:
 - Section 1 Respondent and Requisition Information
 - Section 2 a. Yes, I will be subcontracting portions of the contract.
 - Section 2 b. List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors.
 - Section 2 c. Yes
 - Section 4 Affirmation
 - GFE Method A (Attachment A) Complete an Attachment A for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in Section 2 b.
- If you will be subcontracting any portion of the contract to Texas certified HUB vendors and Non-HUB vendors, and the aggregate percentage of all the subcontracting work you will be awarding to the Texas certified HUB vendors with which you do not have a continuous contract* in place for more than five (5) years meets or exceeds the HUB Goal the contracting agency identified in the "Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements", complete:
 - Section 1 Respondent and Requisition Information
 - Section 2 a. Yes, I will be subcontracting portions of the contract.
 - Section 2 b. List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors and Non-HUB vendors.
 - Section 2 c. No
 - Section 2 d. Yes
 - Section 4 Affirmation
 - GFE Method A (Attachment A) Complete an Attachment A for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in Section 2 b.
- If you will be subcontracting any portion of the contract to Texas certified HUB vendors and Non-HUB vendors or only to Non-HUB vendors, and the aggregate percentage of all the subcontracting work you will be awarding to the Texas certified HUB vendors with which you do not have a continuous contract* in place for more than five (5) years does not meet or exceed the HUB Goal the contracting agency identified in the "Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements", complete:
 - Section 1 Respondent and Requisition Information
 - Section 2 a. Yes, I will be subcontracting portions of the contract.
 - Section 2 b. List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors and Non-HUB vendors.
 - Section 2 c. No
 - Section 2 d. No
 - Section 4 Affirmation
 - GFE Method B (Attachment B) Complete an Attachment B for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in Section 2 b.
- If you will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract and will be fulfilling the entire contract with your own resources (i.e., employees, supplies, materials and/or equipment), complete:
 - Section 1 Respondent and Requisition Information
 - Section 2 a. No, I will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract, and I will be fulfilling the entire contract with my own resources.
 - Section 3 Self Performing Justification
 - Section 4 Affirmation

*Continuous Contract: Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and a HUB vendor, where the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service, to include under the same contract for a specified period of time. The frequency the HUB vendor is utilized or paid during the term of the contract is not relevant to whether the contract is considered continuous. Two or more contracts that run concurrently or overlap one another for different periods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than renewals or extensions to the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into "new" contracts.

Rev. 2/17



c. Requisition #:

HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP)

In accordance with Texas Gov't Code §2161.252, the contracting agency has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable under this contract. Therefore, all respondents, including State of Texas certified Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUBs) must complete and submit this State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) with their response to the bid requisition (solicitation).

NOTE: Responses that do not include a completed HSP shall be rejected pursuant to Texas Gov't Code §2161.252(b).

The HUB Program promotes equal business opportunities for economically disadvantaged persons to contract with the State of Texas in accordance with the goals specified in the 2009 State of Texas Disparity Study. The statewide HUB goals defined in 34 Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §20.284 are:

- 11.2 percent for heavy construction other than building contracts,
- 21.1 percent for all building construction, including general contractors and operative builders' contracts,
- 32.9 percent for all special trade construction contracts,
- · 23.7 percent for professional services contracts,
- · 26.0 percent for all other services contracts, and
- 21.1 percent for commodities contracts.

- - Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements - -

its su agend which to be	cordance with 34 TAC §20.285(d)(1)(D)(iii), a respondent (prime contractor) may demonstrate good faith of boontracting opportunities if the total value of the respondent's subcontracts with Texas certified HUBs meets by specific HUB goal, whichever is higher. When a respondent uses this method to demonstrate good faith effort it will subcontract. If using existing contracts with Texas certified HUBs to satisfy this requirement, only the agg subcontracted to HUBs with which the respondent does not have a continuous contract* in place for more the goal. This limitation is designed to encourage vendor rotation as recommended by the 2009 Texas Disparity Studies.	or exceeds the statewide HUB goal or the the respondent must identify the HUBs with regate percentage of the contracts expected an five (5) years shall qualify for meeting the
SEC	TION 1: RESPONDENT AND REQUISITION INFORMATION	
a.	Respondent (Company) Name:	State of Texas VID #:
	Point of Contact:	Phone #:
	E-mail Address:	Fax #:
b.	Is your company a State of Texas certified HUB? - Yes - No	

Bid Open Date:

(mm/dd/yyyy)

Enter your company's name here:	Requisition #:
	-

SECTION 2: RESPONDENT'S SUBCONTRACTING INTENTIONS

After dividing the contract work into reasonable lots or portions to the extent consistent with prudent industry practices, and taking into consideration the scope of work to be performed under the proposed contract, including all potential subcontracting opportunities, the respondent must determine what portions of work, **including contracted staffing, goods and services will be subcontracted**. Note: In accordance with 34 TAC §20.282, a "Subcontractor" means a person who contracts with a prime contractor to work, to supply commodities, or to contribute toward completing work for a governmental entity.

- a. Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that identifies your subcontracting intentions:
 - Yes, I will be subcontracting portions of the contract. (If Yes, complete Item b of this SECTION and continue to Item c of this SECTION.)
 - □ *No*, I will not be subcontracting <u>any</u> portion of the contract, and I will be fulfilling the entire contract with my own resources, including employees, goods and services. (If *No*, continue to SECTION 3 and SECTION 4.)
- b. List all the portions of work (subcontracting opportunities) you will subcontract. Also, based on the total value of the contract, identify the percentages of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUBs, and the percentage of the contract you expect to award to vendors that are not a Texas certified HUB (i.e., Non-HUB).

		HU	Bs	Non-HUBs
Item #	Subcontracting Opportunity Description	Percentage of the contract expected to be subcontracted to HUBs with which you do not have a continuous contract* in place for more than five (5) years.	Percentage of the contract expected to be subcontracted to HUBs with which you have a continuous contract* in place for more than five (5) years.	Percentage of the contract expected to be subcontracted to non-HUBs.
1		%	%	%
2		%	%	%
3		%	%	%
4		%	%	%
5		%	%	%
6		%	%	%
7		%	%	%
8		%	%	%
9		%	%	%
10		%	%	%
11		%	%	%
12		%	%	%
13		%	%	%
14		%	%	%
15		%	%	%
	Aggregate percentages of the contract expected to be subcontracted:	%	%	%

(Note: If you have more than fifteen subcontracting opportunities, a continuation sheet is available online at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/hub/forms.php).

- **c.** Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether you will be using **only** Texas certified HUBs to perform **all** of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, Item b.
 - Yes (If Yes, continue to SECTION 4 and complete an "HSP Good Faith Effort Method A (Attachment A)" for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed.)
 - No (If No, continue to Item d, of this SECTION.)
- d. Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether the aggregate expected percentage of the contract you will subcontract with Texas certified HUBs with which you do not have a continuous contract* in place with for more than five (5) years, meets or exceeds the HUB goal the contracting agency identified on page 1 in the "Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements."
 - Yes (If Yes, continue to SECTION 4 and complete an "HSP Good Faith Effort Method A (Attachment A)" for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed.)
 - No (If No, continue to SECTION 4 and complete an "HSP Good Faith Effort Method B (Attachment B)" for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed.)

*Continuous Contract: Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and a HUB vendor, where the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service under the same contract for a specified period of time. The frequency the HUB vendor is utilized or paid during the term of the contract is not relevant to whether the contract is considered continuous. Two or more contracts that run concurrently or overlap one another for different periods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than renewals or extensions to the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into "new" contracts.

Enter your company's name here:	Requisition #:
	-

SECTION 2: RESPONDENT'S SUBCONTRACTING INTENTIONS (CONTINUATION SHEET)

This page can be used as a continuation sheet to the HSP Form's page 2, Section 2, Item b. Continue listing the portions of work (subcontracting opportunities) you will subcontract. Also, based on the total value of the contract, identify the percentages of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUBs, and the percentage of the contract you expect to award to vendors that are not a Texas certified HUB (i.e., Non-HUB).

		HL	JBs	Non-HUBs	
Item #	Subcontracting Opportunity Description	Huss with which you are softened to remove than five (s) years.	Percentage of the contract expected to be subcontracted to non-HUBs.		
16		%	%	%	
17		%	%	%	
18		%	%	%	
19		%	%	%	
20		%	%	%	
21		%	%	%	
22		%	%	%	
23		%	%	%	
24		%	%	%	
25		%	%	%	
26		%	%	%	
27		%	%	%	
28		%	%	%	
29		%	%	%	
30		%	%	%	
31		%	%	%	
32		%	%	%	
33		%	%	%	
34		%	%	%	
35		%	%	%	
36		%	%	%	
37		%	%	%	
38		%	%	%	
39		%	%	%	
40		%	%	%	
41		%	%	%	
42		%	%	%	
43		%	%	%	
	Aggregate percentages of the contract expected to be subcontracted:	%	%	%	

*Continuous Contract: Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and a HUB vendor, where the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service under the same contract for a specified period of time. The frequency the HUB vendor is utilized or paid during the term of the contract is not relevant to whether the contract is considered continuous. Two or more contracts that run concurrently or overlap one another for different periods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than renewals or extensions to the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into "new" contracts.

Enter your company's name here:		Requisition #:	
SECTION 3: SELF PERFORMING JUSTIFIC responded "No" to SECTION 2, Item a, in the space materials and/or equipment.			
SECTION 4: Affirmation			
As evidenced by my signature below, I affirm that I supporting documentation submitted with the HSP is	·		
contract. The notice must specify at a minim subcontracting opportunity they (the subcontra- the total contract that the subcontracting oppor	s practical to all the subcontractors (HUBs and N num the contracting agency's name and its point ctor) will perform, the approximate dollar value of trunity represents. A copy of the notice required to (10) working days after the contract is awarded.	nt of contact for the contract, the subcontracting opportunity	he contract award number, the and the expected percentage of
compliance with the HSP, including the u	ance reports (Prime Contractor Progress Asses se of and expenditures made to its subcorlocs/hub-forms/ProgressAssessmentReportForm.	tractors (HUBs and Non-HUE	
subcontractors and the termination of a subcon	contracting agency prior to making any modific stractor the respondent identified in its HSP. If the cement remedies available under the contract or c	HSP is modified without the con	tracting agency's prior approval,
The respondent must, upon request, allow the are being performed and must provide documer	contracting agency to perform on-site reviews of ntation regarding staffing and other resources.	the company's headquarters ar	nd/or work-site where services
Signature	Printed Name	Title	Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

Reminder:

- If you responded "Yes" to SECTION 2, Items c or d, you must complete an "HSP Good Faith Effort Method A (Attachment A)" for <u>each</u> of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, Item b.
- If you responded "No" SECTION 2, Items c and d, you must complete an "HSP Good Faith Effort Method B (Attachment B)" for <u>each</u> of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, Item b.

HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)

Rev. 2/17

Enter your company's name here:	Requisition #:
	-

IMPORTANT: If you responded "*Yes*" to **SECTION 2, Items c** or **d** of the completed HSP form, you must submit a completed "HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)" for <u>each</u> of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in **SECTION 2, Item b** of the completed HSP form. You may photo-copy this page or download the form at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/hub-sbcont-plan-gfe-achm-a.pdf

SECTION A-1: SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY

Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION 2, Item b, of the completed HSP form for which you are completing the attachment.

Item Number: Description:

SECTION A-2: SUBCONTRACTOR SELECTION

List the subcontractor(s) you selected to perform the subcontracting opportunity you listed above in SECTION A-1. Also identify whether they are a Texas certified HUB and their Texas Vendor Identification (VID) Number or federal Employer Identification Number (EIN), the approximate dollar value of the work to be subcontracted, and the expected percentage of work to be subcontracted. When searching for Texas certified HUBs and verifying their HUB status, ensure that you use the State of Texas' Centralized Master Bidders List (CMBL) - Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Directory Search located at http://mvcpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. HUB status code "A" signifies that the company is a Texas certified HUB.

Company Name	Texas certified HUB	Texas VID or federal EIN Do not enter Social Security Numbers. If you do not know their VID / EIN, leave their VID / EIN field blank.	Approximate Dollar Amount	Expected Percentage of Contract
	- Yes - No	·	\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No	·	\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No	_	\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%
	- Yes - No		\$	%

REMINDER: As specified in SECTION 4 of the completed HSP form, if you (respondent) are awarded any portion of the requisition, you are required to provide notice as soon as practical to <u>all</u> the subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBs) of their selection as a subcontractor. The notice must specify at a minimum the contracting agency's name and its point of contact for the contract, the contract award number, the subcontracting opportunity they (the subcontractor) will perform, the approximate dollar value of the subcontracting opportunity and the expected percentage of the total contract that the subcontracting opportunity represents. A copy of the notice required by this section must also be provided to the contracting agency's point of contact for the contract <u>no later than ten (10) working days</u> after the contract is awarded.

HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B)

Rev. 2/17

Enter your company's name here:	Requisition #:

IMPORTANT: If you responded "No" to **SECTION 2**, **Items c** and **d** of the completed HSP form, you must submit a completed "HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B)" for <u>each</u> of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in **SECTION 2**, **Item b** of the completed HSP form. You may photo-copy this page or download the form at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/hub-sbcont-plan-gfe-achm-b.pdf.

SECTION B-1: SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY

Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION 2, Item b, of the completed HSP form for which you are completing the attachment.

Item Number: Description:

SECTION B-2: MENTOR PROTÉGÉ PROGRAM

If respondent is participating as a Mentor in a State of Texas Mentor Protégé Program, submitting its Protégé (Protégé must be a State of Texas certified HUB) as a subcontractor to perform the subcontracting opportunity listed in **SECTION B-1**, constitutes a good faith effort to subcontract with a Texas certified HUB towards that specific portion of work.

Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether you will be subcontracting the portion of work you listed in SECTION B-1 to your Protégé.

- Yes (If Yes, continue to SECTION B-4.)
- No / Not Applicable (If No or Not Applicable, continue to SECTION B-3 and SECTION B-4.)

SECTION B-3: NOTIFICATION OF SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY

When completing this section you <u>MUST</u> comply with items <u>a</u>, <u>b</u>, <u>c</u> and <u>d</u>, thereby demonstrating your Good Faith Effort of having notified Texas certified HUBs <u>and</u> trade organizations or development centers about the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Your notice should include the scope of work, information regarding the location to review plans and specifications, bonding and insurance requirements, required qualifications, and identify a contact person. When sending notice of your subcontracting opportunity, you are encouraged to use the attached HUB Subcontracting Opportunity Notice form, which is also available online at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/HUBSubcontractingOpportunityNotificationForm.pdf.

Retain supporting documentation (i.e., certified letter, fax, e-mail) demonstrating evidence of your good faith effort to notify the Texas certified HUBs <u>and</u> trade organizations or development centers. Also, be mindful that a working day is considered a normal business day of a state agency, not including weekends, federal or state holidays, or days the agency is declared closed by its executive officer. The initial day the subcontracting opportunity notice is sent/provided to the HUBs <u>and</u> to the trade organizations or development centers is considered to be "day zero" and does not count as one of the seven (7) working days.

- a. Provide written notification of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1, to three (3) or more Texas certified HUBs. Unless the contracting agency specified a different time period, you must allow the HUBs at least seven (7) working days to respond to the notice prior to you submitting your bid response to the contracting agency. When searching for Texas certified HUBs and verifying their HUB status, ensure that you use the State of Texas' Centralized Master Bidders List (CMBL) Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Directory Search located at https://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. HUB status code "A" signifies that the company is a Texas certified HUB.
- **b.** List the <u>three (3)</u> Texas certified HUBs you notified regarding the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Include the company's Texas Vendor Identification (VID) Number, the date you sent notice to that company, and indicate whether it was responsive or non-responsive to your subcontracting opportunity notice.

Company Name	(Do not en	Texas VID ter Social Security Numbers.)	Date Notice Sent (mm/dd/yyyy)	Did the HUB Respond?	
				- Yes	- No
				- Yes	- No
		•		- Yes	- No

- c. Provide written notification of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1 to two (2) or more trade organizations or development centers in Texas to assist in identifying potential HUBs by disseminating the subcontracting opportunity to their members/participants. Unless the contracting agency specified a different time period, you must provide your subcontracting opportunity notice to trade organizations or development centers at least seven (7) working days prior to submitting your bid response to the contracting agency. A list of trade organizations and development centers that have expressed an interest in receiving notices of subcontracting opportunities is available on the Statewide HUB Program's webpage at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/hub/resources.php.
- d. List two (2) trade organizations or development centers you notified regarding the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Include the date when you sent notice to it and indicate if it accepted or rejected your notice.

Trade Organizations or Development Centers	Date Notice Sent (mm/dd/yyyy)	Was the Notice Accepted?	
		- Yes	- No
		- Yes	- No

HSP Good Faith Fffort - Method B (Attachment B) Cont.

Enter your company's name here:	Requisition #:				
BECTION B-4: SUBCONTRACTOR SELECTION Inter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you lise attachment. a. Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity for Item Number: Description: b. List the subcontractor(s) you selected to perform the subcontracting opportunity for Item Number: Description: UB and their Texas Vendor Identification (VID) Number or federal Ensubcontracted, and the expected percentage of work to be subcontracted you use the State of Texas' Centralized Master Bidders List (Contractions)	or which you and prtunity you list mplioyer Identi d. When search CMBL) - Histo	re comple ed in SE 6 fication N ning for To prically U	cting this Attachment B conting this Attachment B conting the cont	nuation page. whether they are a late dollar value of rifying their HUB stauus) Directory Sea	Texas certifice the work to atus, ensure t
http://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. HUB status code "A" signifies that the con Company Name Texas certified HUB	Texas VID or federal EIN Do not enter Social Security Numbers. If you do not know their VID / EIN,	Approximate Dollar Amount	Expected Percentage Contract		
	- Yes	- No	leave their VID / EIN field blank.	\$	Contract
	- Yes	- No		\$, and
	- Yes	- No		\$	(
	- Yes	- No		\$	
	- Yes	- No		\$	
	- Yes	- No		\$	1
	- Yes	- No		\$	
	- Yes	- No		\$	
	- Yes	- No		\$	
	- Yes	- No		\$	
If any of the subcontractors you have selected to perform the subcontract justification for your selection process (attach additional page if necessar	- Yes	- No - No		\$	

REMINDER: As specified in SECTION 4 of the completed HSP form, if you (respondent) are awarded any portion of the requisition, you are required to provide notice as soon as practical to all the subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBs) of their selection as a subcontractor. The notice must specify at a minimum the contracting agency's name and its point of contact for the contract, the contract award number, the subcontracting opportunity it (the subcontractor) will perform, the approximate dollar value of the subcontracting opportunity and the expected percentage of the total contract that the subcontracting opportunity represents. A copy of the notice required by this section must also be provided to the contracting agency's point of contact for the contract no later than ten (10) working days after the contract is awarded.

Rev. 2/17



HUB Subcontracting Opportunity Notification Form

In accordance with Texas Gov't Code, Chapter 2161, each state agency that considers entering into a contract with an expected value of \$100,000 or more shall, before the agency solicits bids, proposals, offers, or other applicable expressions of interest, determine whether subcontracting opportunities are probable under the contract. The state agency I have identified below in Section B has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable under the requisition to which my company will be responding.

34 Texas Administrative Code, §20.285 requires all respondents (prime contractors) bidding on the contract to provide notice of each of their subcontracting opportunities to at least https://exas.certified-HUBs (who work within the respective industry applicable to the subcontracting opportunity), and allow the HUBs at least seven (7) working days to respond to the notice prior to the respondent submitting its bid response to the contracting agency. In addition, at least seven (7) working days prior to submitting its bid response to the contracting agency, the respondent must provide notice of each of its subcontracting opportunities to two (2) or more trade organizations or development centers (in Texas) that serves members of groups (i.e., Asian Pacific American, Black American, Hispanic American, Native American, Woman, Service Disabled Veteran) identified in Texas Administrative Code §20.282(19)(C).

We respectfully request that vendors interested in bidding on the subcontracting opportunity scope of work identified in Section C, Item 2, reply no later than the date and time identified in Section C, Item 1. Submit your response to the point-of-contact referenced in Section A.

definited in Section C, Item 1. Submit your response to the point-or-contact referenced in	Section A.
SECTION A: PRIME CONTRACTOR'S INFORMATION	
Company Name:	State of Texas VID #:
Point-of-Contact:	
E-mail Address:	Fax #:
SECTION B: CONTRACTING STATE AGENCY AND REQUISITION INFO	
Agency Name:	
Point-of-Contact:	Phone #:
Requisition #:	Bid Open Date:
	(mm/dd/yyyy)
SECTION C: SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY RESPONSE DUE DAT	TE, DESCRIPTION, REQUIREMENTS AND RELATED INFORMATION
Potential Subcontractor's Bid Response Due Date:	
If you would like for our company to consider your company's bi	d for the subcontracting opportunity identified below in Item 2,
we must receive your bid response no later than	on .
	Central Time Date (mm/dd/yyyy)
American, Woman, Service Disabled Veteran) identified in Texas Administrative (A working day is considered a normal business day of a state agency, not include by its executive officer. The initial day the subcontracting opportunity notice is see is considered to be "day zero" and does not count as one of the seven (7) working	ding weekends, federal or state holidays, or days the agency is declared closed ent/provided to the HUBs and to the trade organizations or development centers
2. Subcontracting Opportunity Scope of Work:	
3. Required Qualifications:	- Not Applicable
4. Bonding/Insurance Requirements:	- Not Applicable
5. Location to review plans/specifications:	- Not Applicable